Across a watersplash just below Dyffryn Castell Hotel lies CASTELL or WEST ESGAIRLLE (775813). This shallow mine exploited the powerful lode that extends as far as the Vale of Rheidol, and was being opened for blende by Thomas Bonsall in 1785 ; it had however, probably closed by 1803, when the thriving South Wales ironworks had attracted nearly every Cardiganshire miner.

During a re-working in 1856, Nicholas Ennor favoured Castell with a passing glance during his annual tour of mines likely to interest investors. Writing to the Mining Journal he ridiculed the management for erecting a waterwheel' so high on the hill as to be unable to obtain sufficient water to turn it'. This drew a strong retort and explanations from Captain Lester, who also stated that the wheel was for a crusher 18 fathoms north of Engine Shaft, with a pumping and drawing wheel to be placed between. Nevertheless, Ennor judged correctly, for in November 1856 the property complete with 30 ft x 4 ft waterwheel came up for sale, being optimistically described as ' in perfect working order and offering to capitalists an opportunity seldom to be met with '. The auctioneer was T. P. Thomas.

The mine reopened again on several occasions, the longest run being from 1898 to 1908. The present crusher house with its lofty tapering walls was erected in 1898 by Captain J. Owen for the New Castell Mines Ltd., and the fine wheelpit alongside (43 ft x 5 ft) may date from this period. Castell produced over 5000 tons of blende and a little galena.

Behind the crusher house and guarded by a fence are huge opencut workings, to the west of which is Engine Shaft with walls of the balance pit. Towards the crusher house is a hollow that no doubt contained Captain Lester's wheel, but of his pumping and drawing wheelpit there is no trace—probably it was never built.

